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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  My name is Robert Jackson, and I am the

          4  Chair of the Contracts Committee.  And I would like

          5  to introduce the members of the Contracts Committee

          6  that are present this morning and the staff. From my

          7  left to my right, Council Member James Sanders, Jr.,

          8  from Queens, the prime sponsor of the bill; Council

          9  Member John Liu from Queens; Council Member

         10  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan, to my extreme right;

         11  Robert Newman, the Counsel to the Contracts

         12  Committee, sitting next to me; and, Caroline Kretz

         13  from the Finance Division, sitting next to Robert.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am only

         15  sitting to the extreme right, only sitting.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:   I said

         17  sitting.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good morning

         20  and welcome to this meeting of the Council's

         21  Committee on Contracts.  My name is Robert Jackson,

         22  and I am the Chair of the Committee.

         23                 This morning we will be discussing

         24  Intro. 239, the displaced service workers and their

         25  needs.  Specifically, we will be discussing
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          2  legislation, Intro. 239 that is aimed at providing a

          3  minimum of job security for these workers in these

          4  uncertain times. This law provides building service

          5  employees temporary protection from the loss of

          6  employment when the building in which they are

          7  employed is sold or controlled transferred to

          8  another entity, or if they are employed by a

          9  contractor if their contractor loses its service

         10  contract and is succeeded by a new contractor

         11  retained by the new building owner or manager.

         12                 In either situation, the successor

         13  employer is required to offer employment to all

         14  those employees that were working in the building,

         15  the incumbent employees, subject to the cause,

         16  meaning that if they did something wrong like punch

         17  the employer in the nose, which that would never

         18  happen, subject to cause, at least, the employer

         19  must retain these employees for 90 days.

         20                 Nothing in the act limits the

         21  employer's ability to establish terms and conditions

         22  for employment for the employees or to reduce the

         23  number of employees from that of the previous

         24  employer.

         25                 Importantly, the law would provide
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          2  employees with a private right of action against an

          3  employer who breaks the law.  In essence, it will

          4  provide the right of an employee to sue that

          5  employer.  And also importantly, the law does not

          6  apply to successor employers that agree to be bound

          7  by, or that enter into collective bargaining

          8  agreements that provide terms and conditions for the

          9  discharge and laying off of employees, or to

         10  predecessor employers who obtain commitments from

         11  the employers that they will be bound by such

         12  collective bargaining agreements.  Simply put, this

         13  law would protect the building service workers, such

         14  as watchmen, guards, doormen, cleaners, porters,

         15  handymen, janitors, gardeners, groundkeepers,

         16  stationary firemen, elevator operators, window

         17  cleaners, and superintendents from the vagaries of a

         18  particular volatile post- 9/11 job market by simply

         19  requiring employers to recognize their achievements

         20  as workers.

         21                 As I said, the law is intended to

         22  provide for stability of employment for building

         23  service employees, and reduce the need for social

         24  services and the utilization of taxpayer finance

         25  resources that frequently result from unemployment.

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  In the building service industry, contract turnover

          3  in a particular building is not uncommon, based on

          4  the competitive bidding cycle. As a result, building

          5  service employees face loss of employment due to a

          6  change in employer and not because they were

          7  unsatisfactory workers.  Such unemployment can

          8  burden social services in these times of fiscal

          9  stringency, as well as remove from the building

         10  employees who are familiar with tenants and others

         11  who work in the building.

         12                 This disruption undermines a sense of

         13  security and safety in buildings that are so

         14  important in our current environment.  Similarly,

         15  consequences result when buildings are sold or

         16  transfer in control occurs.  In response, other

         17  state and local governments have enacted building

         18  service employee retention laws or regulations on

         19  which this act is modeled.  To address these same

         20  concerns, districts like the District of Columbia,

         21  Washington, D.C., Philadelphia, the City of L.A. And

         22  the State of California, we as New Yorkers can and

         23  should not do less for our workers.  Is that

         24  correct?

         25                 Now I would like to introduce City
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          2  Council Member James Sanders, Jr., the prime sponsor

          3  of this bill, Council Member Sanders.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

          5  Council Member Jackson.  It is always a pleasure to

          6  work with you and the Contracts Committee.  Usually,

          7  I jokingly call Robert Jackson, my partner in crime,

          8  but I think today, we may call my partner to end

          9  crime, but I will not do those things.

         10                 Let me start with a disclaimer,

         11  everyone loves a disclaimer.  I want to mention that

         12  the City has voiced concerns, the Administration has

         13  voiced concerns about the reach of the bill, and

         14  that we are currently working with them and other

         15  interested parties in crafting language that will

         16  address their concerns, and we look forward to

         17  coming up with a bill that will accomplish all of

         18  our goals.

         19                 Having said that, let me welcome all

         20  of the great people to City Hall today.  This is

         21  your City Hall, and I am glad that you are back in

         22  it, do not leave.  We have a contingent, of course,

         23  from SEIU, 32BJ here, and is anybody from that group

         24  here? I see the President and other people here, and

         25  we applaud that the work that you do every day,
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          2  because when we speak of heroes, we have to speak of

          3  32BJ and the work that people are doing every day,

          4  every day makes people heroes.

          5                 This bill, the Displaced Building

          6  Workers Protection Act, will protect hardworking New

          7  Yorkers and security conscience tenants throughout

          8  the City.  The goals are always, while the goals are

          9  always worthy, our currently heightened security

         10  concerns and a weakened economy, makes this bill

         11  especially timely.  This bill will provide, at no

         12  cost, temporary protection against job loss for

         13  building service workers.  If a building is sold or

         14  transferred, or if the building hires a new service

         15  contractor, the current, the existing workforce will

         16  be maintained for 90 days.  This legislation is an

         17  opportunity for us to confront several recent

         18  challenges at once.

         19                 We can afford to offer temporary

         20  protection against job lost to thousands of building

         21  service workers, who are subjected to an unstable,

         22  real estate market.  We can make our City buildings

         23  more secure for tenants by ensuring continuity in

         24  the building workforce.  We can also avoid

         25  contributing to the already significant fiscal
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          2  pressures by keeping workers in good paying,

          3  productive jobs and keeping them off the growing

          4  unemployment and social service roles.  This

          5  displaced worker legislation is the right bill for

          6  the workers and tenants of New York City.  I look

          7  forward to hearing the testimony from all of the

          8  witnesses today.              Thank you very much,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Sanders.  I would like to also

         12  recognize, to my extreme left, Council Member Yvette

         13  Clarke from the great Borough of Brooklyn.

         14                 Would any other Council member like

         15  to make any preliminary statements before I call the

         16  first witness?

         17                 Okay, I would like to call to

         18  testify, Jennifer Blum from DCAS.  Jennifer, good

         19  morning.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN:  Hi, could you raise your

         21  right hand, please?  Do you solemnly swear or affirm

         22  that the testimony you are about to give is the

         23  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MS. BLUM:  I do.

         25                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please, state your name
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          2  and affiliation for the record?

          3                 MS. BLUM:  My name is Jennifer Blum.

          4  I am the Director of Special Projects at the New

          5  York City Department of Citywide Administrative

          6  Services.  Thank you for the opportunity to testify

          7  about Intro. 239- A relating to displaced building

          8  service workers.

          9                 Although 239- A represents an unusual

         10  effort to regulate private sector labor relations,

         11  and to mandate continued employment where collective

         12  bargaining agreements do not apply, and although the

         13  duties imposed by the bill by successor employers

         14  are at times unclear, today we will primarily

         15  address the bill's impact upon public agencies.

         16                 First, although the bill states that

         17  it is retention obligations apply to public

         18  buildings, it is highly doubtful as a matter of both

         19  civil service law and public policy, whether those

         20  obligations can and should be applied, where a

         21  private service contract is terminated so that

         22  public employees may assume the duty of maintaining

         23  or securing a publicly owned or leased building.  It

         24  would be extremely unusual to require that the City

         25  offer public employment to employees of private
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          2  contractors.  Conversely, where formerly public

          3  services are being contracted out, other laws and

          4  contractual obligations already apply.  Due to civil

          5  service system, including existing civil service

          6  lists, instance may very well arise whereby the City

          7  is precluded from hiring these displaced workers.

          8                 Second, the City currently maintains

          9  approximately 560 leases with private landlords for

         10  office space and other agency uses.  This bilateral

         11  has the potential to increase the costs incurred by

         12  landlords in providing the relevant services.  Such

         13  increased costs will undoubtedly be passed on to the

         14  City in its capacity as a lessee.  The extent to

         15  those increased costs is difficult to ascertain at

         16  this point, but could conceivably involve millions

         17  of dollars.

         18                 Third, the bill's enforcement

         19  remedies should not be applicable directly against

         20  public agencies.  In a period of fiscal constraint,

         21  the creation of new causes of action against the

         22  City and other public agencies, including payment of

         23  attorney's fees cannot be justified.

         24                 Fourth, if the bill is interpreted to

         25  apply to public authorities and public development
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          2  corporations in the City, including the New York

          3  City Housing Authority and the Health and Hospitals

          4  Corporation, then it may impede their ability to

          5  perform their duties in a manner consistent with

          6  their State law mandates.

          7                 Fifth, the bill is placed at the end

          8  of the Building Code, thereby apparently tying into

          9  enforcement and administrative provisions of that

         10  Code.  This is simply inappropriate; the Department

         11  of Buildings should not be involved in enforcement

         12  of the bill.  The placement of the new subchapter

         13  may be inadvertent, given that the bill's stated

         14  enforcement mechanism is a private right of action.

         15  If the Council proceeds with this bill, the

         16  Administration urges that the provisions be moved

         17  elsewhere in the Administrative Code.

         18                 Finally, the Council should be aware

         19  that, even if the changes we have suggested are

         20  made, this bill represents yet another burden upon

         21  the City's contracting system, at a time when both

         22  the Mayor and the Council have expressed genuine

         23  interest in procurement streamlining and reform.  I

         24  may require agencies that procured building services

         25  to adopt new procedures and contractor mandates,
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          2  with associated costs, to ensure compliance with the

          3  bill, and would further reduce any material savings

          4  that could be available to those agencies.

          5                 In conclusion, I should note that the

          6  Administration has reservations about the intrusive

          7  effect of this bill on private enterprise and the

          8  message it sends to the investment and real estate

          9  sectors in particular.  We understand that the Real

         10  Estate Board of New York (REBNY), which has a long

         11  history of working with the city's elected officials

         12  on policies to foster development and operates in

         13  the large New York City property market, has not

         14  opposed the bill.  We will defer to their expertise

         15  as it relates to their membership and you will no

         16  doubt hear from them on this matter.  However, for

         17  the reasons stated earlier we continue to believe

         18  that it is not appropriate to apply the bill to

         19  public agencies or real estate transactions

         20  involving public agencies.  It is inconsistent with

         21  the principles of streamlining procurement and

         22  exercising fiscal constraint.  In short, we urge the

         23  Intro. 239- A be modified to make it inapplicable to

         24  public agencies.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you, Ms.

          3  Blum. Questions?  Mr. Sanders.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  I just want

          5  to assure the Administration that we are continuing

          6  our dialogue over this bill to see how we can

          7  protect the workers and what we can do to make sure

          8  that it enabled New York City to be the most

          9  competitive and effective City out.  Thank you.

         10                 MS. BLUM:  I appreciate that, and as

         11  the agency responsible for managing the City's non-

         12  residential real estate portfolio, we are very

         13  interested in working with you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I would like to

         15  recognize, to my extreme left again, David Yassky

         16  from the great Borough of Brooklyn.

         17                 Council Member Lopez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am

         19  interested in knowing specifically what are the

         20  changes that the Administration would like to see in

         21  this bill, very specific?  Because very often I have

         22  seen in this Council Chambers opposition to a bill

         23  claiming certain problems, but they are willing to

         24  support a bill in general.  But this time the issue

         25  that is at stake implied that a lot of people who
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          2  lost their job in September 11th, are the ones

          3  affected by this.  Therefore, we do not have the

          4  luxury of time, and I want to understand what are

          5  the specific opposition that you have to this, and

          6  what are your suggestions to fix those problems?

          7                 MS. BLUM:  First of all, I am not

          8  going to pretend to be an attorney, because I am not

          9  one.  But perhaps it would be helpful if I gave you

         10  some concrete examples.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is good,

         12  I do not like attorneys, although, I have a lot of

         13  friends who are attorneys.

         14                 MS. BLUM:  Sorry, Rob.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then you are

         16  in the right place at this moment.

         17                 MS. BLUM:  If you look at the first

         18  point I made in the testimony, let me give you an

         19  example of a building that might fall under that

         20  scenario.  You are all familiar with 100 Gold

         21  Street.  It is a publicly owned building that is

         22  currently privately managed.  One might envision,

         23  some time in the future, this is not in our plan, so

         24  it is a theoretical.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I understand
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          2  that your statements are not about factual

          3  occurrence.

          4                 MS. BLUM:  Okay, this is just

          5  theoretical, that perhaps it would be in the City's

          6  best interest, or deemed in the City's best interest

          7  to bring that particular building, which is

          8  currently publicly owned and privately maintained,

          9  back into our public maintenance portfolio.

         10                 In that situation, might there be

         11  instances that arise where we have existing civil

         12  service lists for some of those positions, and we

         13  would be precluded from bringing those workers into

         14  public employment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But wait a

         16  moment, if that would be the case, then these

         17  workers who will be public employee, will have all

         18  the benefits based on their unions that cover them

         19  with the City.  And what we are talking about here

         20  are workers who are not covered under the benefits

         21  of the City's employees and the unions that protect

         22  them.  What we are talking about here, for the most

         23  part, are workers who are working in private

         24  sectors, for the most part, who get affected by

         25  these situations on a continuing basis.
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          2                 Then the example that you gave me,

          3  although I appreciate what you are saying, it does

          4  not fulfill my question. I want to understand,

          5  beside that, what are the specific problems that the

          6  Administration will have with the simple fact of

          7  providing to workers three months unemployment that

          8  everybody gets by law in New York City and in New

          9  York State, because these laws were passed long time

         10  ago?

         11                 MS. BLUM:  I am saying two things on

         12  that point. One, that might be situations that arise

         13  because of our civil service system, where it would

         14  be impossible for us to hire someone when there is

         15  an existing civil service list.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, then

         17  that is one problem.

         18                 MS. BLUM:  That is a concrete

         19  example.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And what else.

         21                 MS. BLUM:  We believe it is, it would

         22  be highly unusual also, and you know, typically it

         23  is left to the Administration, to the Chief

         24  Executive Officer of a City to decide who is on the

         25  City's payroll.  It is highly unusual for
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          2  legislation to mandate who a City agency must hire,

          3  and that is a policy issue we have with the bill.

          4                 You know, second, would be

          5  situations, as I mentioned, the City is the lessee

          6  in approximately 560 different leases, where we

          7  lease private sector space for City use.  Whether it

          8  is for office use, or for day care centers or senior

          9  centers, wherever, warehousing, whatever.  And if

         10  there is an inherent cost in this legislation, it

         11  would be passed along to the City as the tenants.

         12  And we are saying given our current fiscal

         13  situation, the constraints put upon the City in this

         14  budget environment that should be something that we

         15  all think very closely about.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Have you

         17  submitted or any dependency of the Mayor's Office,

         18  anyone, has submitted in writing what are the

         19  reasons why you are, at this moment, not supporting

         20  this bill, the specific reasons, have you done that?

         21    Because I see you have your testimony, but I do

         22  not have the benefit to have that testimony in

         23  writing in my hands here for me to see it and to

         24  understand what you are talking about, I do not have

         25  it.  Is it in here?  In the package, okay.  Besides
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          2  this, have you submitted anything to the Committee

          3  in the opposition that you have to this bill,

          4  specific instances?  I am asking you about your

          5  agency only, because that is the only answer that

          6  you can give me.

          7                 MS. BLUM:  No, I have not,

          8  personally.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Not

         10  personally, I am talking about the agency, itself.

         11  Have the agency - -

         12                 MS. BLUM:  The agency has not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: - -  issued a

         14  memo in opposition to this bill specifying what are

         15  the problems that you have with this bill, besides

         16  your testimony today?

         17                 MS. BLUM:  Besides the testimony

         18  before you today, no, we have not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I would

         20  suggest that the Chairman should request such a memo

         21  from the Administration in order for us to be more

         22  clear what is the opposition.  Because it appeared

         23  to be that according to the testimony that I hear,

         24  they are in agreement with us, that this should be

         25  done.
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          2                 Therefore, if they are in agreement

          3  what should be done, we should understand what is

          4  the contradiction that we are engaging on, in a more

          5  clear way.  Then I suggest that we request a memo

          6  from them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Council member,

          8  the Mayor's Office and staff are discussing with the

          9  Council's Legal staff and others in order to clarify

         10  some issues.  And so, I think that the broad

         11  categories of concern that they raised in reference

         12  to the City properties are being looked into by our

         13  Legal staff and the staff of the Mayor and what have

         14  you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can that be

         16  shared with the rest of the members of the City

         17  Council?  Because I am very curious to understand

         18  how come we agree so much, but we cannot pass the

         19  bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right, I think

         21  that, yes, in fact, before we have the next hearing

         22  on this particular matter, you will have all of

         23  those details and correspondence.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You are
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          2  welcome.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And how much

          4  do we have to go?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  A month she

          6  said.

          7                 MS. BLUM:  Another month.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Is it a girl

          9  or a boy?

         10                 MS. BLUM:  A boy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Mmm, it should

         12  be a girl, they are perfect.

         13                 MS. BLUM:  I am sorry, I just make

         14  boys.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  God bless,

         16  you.

         17                 MS. BLUM:  I have tried before.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  God bless you,

         19  and I hope that your baby comes healthy.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  One second,

         21  please.  I would like to introduce Joseph Addabbo,

         22  to my right, from the Borough of Queens, the great

         23  Borough of Queens.

         24                 And John Liu, Council member from

         25  Queens, John.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you very

          3  much.  I guess I am not going to bombard you with a

          4  whole bunch of questions, because I know that our

          5  Committee and the Council is working diligently with

          6  the Administration to work out a good bill to

          7  everybody's satisfaction.

          8                 I do want to point out that in your

          9  testimony, and this appears to be, this kind of

         10  reasoning appears often in testimony provided by the

         11  Administration.  You talk about the increased costs

         12  that will undoubtedly be passed onto the City in its

         13  capacity as a lessee.  The extent of these increased

         14  costs are difficult to ascertain at this point.  But

         15  can conceivably involve millions of dollars.

         16                 MS. BLUM:  Based upon the number of

         17  leases that we are a party to.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I mean I think

         19  that, well, if you have some kind of basis, then I

         20  would really like to take a look at what is going

         21  into those estimates.  I think that, I guess the

         22  point I am trying to make is that my colleagues and

         23  I on the City Council are very concerned about the

         24  tough fiscal times that this city is facing.  And I

         25  think if you look around the room today, you will
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          2  see the faces of New Yorkers that are equally

          3  concerned about the tough fiscal times that this

          4  city faces.

          5                 And I know that in attempting to keep

          6  our city fiscally healthy, sometimes we are afraid

          7  to even touch upon topics that may have a short-

          8  term accounting impact.  And I say, short term

          9  accounting impact, because I want to urge you and

         10  your agency to, perhaps, take a broader view of not

         11  just the fiscal impact, it may have on your agency.

         12  But look to the positive impacts that this bill

         13  could have, in terms, of saving jobs, keeping people

         14  employed, thereby, making unnecessary the other

         15  costs that will have to be born by taxpayers, in

         16  terms of unemployment costs, in terms of job

         17  instability, and the tremendous costs of employee

         18  turnover when you displace workers in one building,

         19  only to replace them with another group of workers.

         20  Those costs are real costs, and they need to be

         21  factored into  this decision making process. You

         22  cannot simply look at the impact of this bill on one

         23  agency, it has got to be looked at, at the City

         24  level.  And I think we have to have the guts to look

         25  at it at the State level as well, because the costs
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          2  are ultimately born by taxpayers, whether they be

          3  levied by the City or the State or the Federal

          4  government.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 MS. BLUM:  Can I respond to that,

          7  please?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure, please,

          9  go right ahead.

         10                 MS. BLUM:  I just want to point out

         11  that in this instance I am speaking on behalf of the

         12  entire City, or all City agencies.  And also, in

         13  this instance, I just want to be clear that the City

         14  would be treated, in that example, like any other

         15  private sector tenant.  It is just the cost inherent

         16  within this bill, it is not unique to the City.

         17  There may very well be costs to landlords which

         18  would be passed along to their tenants.  And in this

         19  instance that we bring up, the tenant happens to be

         20  the City of New York.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I appreciate

         22  your point of view there, and I am suggesting that

         23  we might take the analysis to a higher level that

         24  would analyze the cost savings on many of the fronts

         25  as well.  And even from what you just told me, and I
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          2  know we are trying to work something out, but I just

          3  wanted to urge the Administration to really look at

          4  the other fronts as well, not just focus on the role

          5  of the City as the maintainer of a specific

          6  building.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. BLUM:  Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you, Ms.

         10  Blum.  I appreciate the opportunity to give

         11  testimony in front of us this morning.  Thank you.

         12                 MS. BLUM:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I would like to

         14  recognize, also, to my right, the Council member

         15  that I share Washington Heights with, Council Member

         16  Miguel Martinez.  And the reason I did not see him,

         17  Dr. Kendall Stewart from the great Borough of

         18  Brooklyn, is sitting right behind me.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I am

         20  watching your back.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Watching my

         22  back.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I am

         24  definitely watching your back.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And Mike
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          2  McMahon from the great Borough of Staten Island is

          3  over here, sitting behind us. And Council Member

          4  Charles Barron from the great Borough of Brooklyn,

          5  is right behind him.  And sitting amongst you is

          6  Council Member Al Vann from the great Borough of

          7  Brooklyn.  And standing, watching all of us is Mike

          8  Nelson, from the great Borough of Brooklyn.

          9                 Where is Tony?  Oh, there he is, and

         10  Tony Avella from the great Borough of Queens,

         11  watching all of us.

         12                 I would like to call the next

         13  witness, Mike Fishman, President of SEIU, Local

         14  32BJ.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN:  Would you please raise

         16  your right hand? Do you solemnly swear or affirm

         17  that the testimony you are about to give is the

         18  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. FISHMAN:  I do.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your name

         21  and affiliation for the record?

         22                 MR. FISHMAN:  Mike Fishman, President

         23  of Local 32BJ, SEIU.

         24                 Mr. Chairman and members of the

         25  Committee, Council members, staff, I want to thank
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          2  you for giving me this opportunity today to come and

          3  speak about Intro. 239- A.

          4                 I would like to give you a little bit

          5  of an overview of Local 32BJ, and then explain how

          6  this bill would help our members, and we believe,

          7  help the City.  Our union represents 70,000 members

          8  throughout the New York, Metropolitan area.  In New

          9  York City we have 55,000 members who work and live

         10  within the City. We represent doormen, porters,

         11  handyman, superintendents, resident managers,

         12  security officers, cleaners, consignors, tour

         13  guides, window cleaners, in every building

         14  throughout New York.  When you go home to an

         15  apartment, the person you call to help fix your

         16  plumbing is a member of 32BJ.  When you meet the

         17  doorman at the door, that is a member of 32BJ.  When

         18  you leave home and go to an office building in the

         19  City and there is someone sitting at a desk, that

         20  also is a member of 32BJ.  And when you leave your

         21  office and someone comes in at night and cleans the

         22  building, that is also a member of 32BJ.

         23                 Our members come from 60 countries,

         24  speak 24 languages.  They are the heart of New York

         25  City.  We, as a union, have fought for nearly 70
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          2  years to ensure that the workers who take care of

          3  the tenants in the buildings in New York have some

          4  stability in their life.  Our members who come from

          5  the newest residents of New York City and from some

          6  of the poorest, can have a job that can provide

          7  benefits, a decent life, and some stability because

          8  of the social contract that has been worked out

          9  between responsible owners and the union over these

         10  70 years.

         11                 Each year, nearly 600 buildings are

         12  sold from one owner to another.  And when that

         13  building is sold, in most cases, the responsible

         14  owner will continue the employment of the members of

         15  32BJ, or the workers who work in those buildings,

         16  whether they are a member or not.  But in a small

         17  percentage of those transactions, 10 percent, when a

         18  new owner takes over, there are those owners who do

         19  not adhere to the social contract, who would replace

         20  those workers, lay them off, bring in other workers,

         21  at whatever conditions they choose, and the workers

         22  in those buildings would lose their livelihood.

         23                 Our members, who are many here today,

         24  like many New Yorkers are one paycheck away from

         25  devastation.  One paycheck away from losing health
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          2  insurance, from losing their benefits, from losing

          3  pension rights, from losing the money that they need

          4  to maintain their apartment or their home.  In New

          5  York City stability and security, especially in

          6  these times, is a critical element to making this

          7  City the wonderful place it is to work and to grow,

          8  and for our children to grow up.

          9                 When workers are let go, when a

         10  building changes hands, it is not just bad for those

         11  workers, it is bad for the community.  It is bad for

         12  the economy.  As one of the Council members said, if

         13  a worker is let go and they lose their health

         14  insurance, the taxpayers have to pay for their

         15  health coverage.  If a worker is let go, they have

         16  to collect unemployment if they are eligible.  They

         17  have all kinds of needs and services that will no

         18  longer be provided through their employment, but

         19  will be provided through the taxes of this City.  It

         20  is bad for the economy and it is bad for the

         21  workers.

         22                 This bill says one simple thing.

         23  When a building changes hands, the new owner will

         24  give the hardworking men and women of New York,

         25  whether they are members of 32BJ or not, they will
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          2  have the opportunity for 90 days to be able to

          3  continue in employment.  It does not mean that there

          4  will be any increased costs to anyone who buys that

          5  building, they will continue at either the cost they

          6  were getting, the rates they were getting, or at

          7  whatever rates the new owner chooses.  But the bill

          8  would guarantee them to get a chance, a trial.

          9                 And so, for our members who are

         10  sitting here today, for all the citizens of New

         11  York, this bill is very simple, it says that if you

         12  are a hardworking person who has helped to maintain

         13  the buildings, helped to maintain offices, helped to

         14  maintain the apartments, taking care of the tenants,

         15  taking care of the residents of this City, they will

         16  be given what we would all consider the human chance

         17  to keep that job, a 90- day period.

         18                 Together building service workers in

         19  this City bring in $3 billion in income for the work

         20  that they do.  That $3 billion, because our members

         21  live here in New York City, they spend it here in

         22  New York City.  That generates 33,664 other jobs,

         23  and it generates another $1.5 billion into the

         24  economy.

         25                 We believe, all of us who are sitting
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          2  here today, and all the 55,000 members of 32BJ that

          3  we want to protect not only our members, but every

          4  building service worker in the City.  That everyone

          5  gets the right, the chance for a 90- day trial

          6  period, for a look and see.  That gives the workers

          7  a chance to continue in their employment, keep

          8  stability in the family, keep stability in the City,

          9  and keep stability in the economy.

         10                 We would say in these difficult times

         11  since 9/11 that in this time, in particular, in this

         12  country and in this city, where we as the building

         13  service workers of New York take care of buildings

         14  that have been attacked, that could be attacked

         15  again, that we are there and we are the people who

         16  open the door, receive the packages, open the mail,

         17  clean the offices, we are part of what makes this

         18  City safe.  We want to make New York and keep New

         19  York the safest City in North America.  We think

         20  this bill helps to do that because we will ensure

         21  with stability and continuity of employment that the

         22  people who know who should be in those buildings and

         23  what should be in those buildings, will be part of

         24  making New York the safest City in America.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Before we take

          3  any questions, I would like to introduce another

          4  esteemed colleague of mine, from the great Borough

          5  of Queens, Melinda Katz.

          6                 Questions from my colleagues?

          7  Council Member Sanders.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Mr.

          9  President, you stated it so well.  My only question

         10  is, what is all of that, what does all of this

         11  represent to us?

         12                 MR. FISHMAN:  Well while I was

         13  speaking, some of our members brought in, as you can

         14  see here, a stack of 15,000 postcards addressed to

         15  the Speaker of the City Council, that says, "Dear

         16  Speaker Miller, I am a member of Local 32BJ and a

         17  New York City resident.  My union members want the

         18  Displaced Worker Protection Act passed right away to

         19  protect our jobs and secure our family's future.

         20  This bill has enough support to override a potential

         21  Mayoral veto.  So let's move it through the Council

         22  as quick as possible.  Your swift action will help

         23  thousands and billions of service workers and the

         24  people they serve."  Address to Speaker Miller and

         25  we are presenting them to all of you to him, today.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well I see,

          3  in case he did not understand the first version you

          4  gave him, the same thing in Spanish up here, so just

          5  in case.  I am sure he understood what you were

          6  talking about, Sir.  And I just compliment, anyone

          7  who can bring 15,000 of these up the stairs and all,

          8  this is very serious, and I think it should be taken

          9  seriously.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Thank you, Mr.

         11  President.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Council Member

         13  Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Good morning.

         15                 MR. FISHMAN:  Good morning.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And thank you

         17  for organizing the base to demand their rights in

         18  the City, that is the way politics should be run, in

         19  my opinion.

         20                 I want to know have you, your

         21  organization, your union have met with any

         22  dependency of the Mayor's Office or the Mayor's

         23  different offices to discuss this bill?

         24                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes, some of our

         25  Counsel have talked to Counsel staff about these
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          2  issues.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Of the Mayor's

          4  Office.

          5                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes.  Sitting to my

          6  right is Larry Engelstein, who is the General

          7  Counsel of our union, his office has talked with the

          8  Mayor's Office Counsel, some of their staff.  We are

          9  not clear what the Mayor is asking for.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can you relate

         11  to us, as Council members, what are the explanations

         12  that have been given to you for the Mayor to have

         13  assumed the position that I take is publicly taken

         14  today with the testimony that we received?  And as

         15  you see, I make a lot of notes on this testimony.

         16  Can you tell me some of the things that have been

         17  told to you, that is a problem with this bill?

         18                 MR. FISHMAN:  I would say we only

         19  began the conversation just in the last day or so,

         20  and I think the Counsel to the Committee is the one

         21  who had the most conversation with the Mayor's

         22  Office.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then you as an

         24  organization has not --

         25                 MR. FISHMAN:  Have not had the whole
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          2  conversation, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can you tell

          4  me why that reaching out has not happened from the

          5  part of the union to the Mayor's side?

          6                 MR. FISHMAN:  We started out early on

          7  when we introduced the bill to talk to them and gave

          8  them an overview.  And then we began, as we got to

          9  this stage, to reach out to them, and the

         10  conversation took place through the Committee

         11  Counsel.  And we intend to go back to the Mayor now,

         12  and talk with him.

         13                 The issues that were raised today,

         14  which I have not heard all of them before.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  This is the

         16  first time you hear them?

         17                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.

         19                 MR. FISHMAN:  The one issue that I am

         20  perplexed by is the issue they raised about cost.

         21  There is no cost associated with this bill.  We are

         22  only saying that workers will get a right to a 90-

         23  day period of employment.  There is no cost

         24  associated neither for increased cost for a

         25  contract, increased cost for wages, there is none
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          2  that we know of.  And so I am perplexed by that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  It is

          4  interesting because my first note in here is to ask

          5  you was precisely in regard to that statement, when

          6  the Mayor is speaking about dollars, what dollars he

          7  is talking about that are going to affect the

          8  taxpayers dollars or the City dollars as a whole.

          9  In your opinion, it is none.

         10                 MR. FISHMAN:  None.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then has the

         12  Mayor made it publicly known what he is referring to

         13  before that you know?

         14                 MR. FISHMAN:  I do not know.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  About the

         16  dollars that they are talking about?

         17                 MR. FISHMAN:  I do not know, that is

         18  the first time I heard that issue raised.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well it would

         20  be interesting for the Counsel to find out what is

         21  the Mayor referring to, because the statement here

         22  is a very strong one that said the extent of this

         23  increased cost is difficult to ascertain a this

         24  point, but could considerably involve millions of

         25  dollars.  Then I would like to know from the part of
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          2  the Counsel, from did they arrive to that number?

          3  What is the mathematics that took place in here that

          4  arrived to that number, and we are talking about a

          5  lot of money there.  Then it would be good if they

          6  make it in a statement like that, that is backup

          7  with the mathematics that took place that arrived to

          8  that number, and it would be helpful for us to

          9  understand what it is he is talking about.

         10                 The last question, and thank you for

         11  being patient.

         12                 MR. FISHMAN:  Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  It is an

         14  argument that the Mayor is making in here about

         15  putting this particular piece of legislation under

         16  the Code of the Buildings Department.  I am inclined

         17  to support the Mayor's position on that, unless you

         18  give me a reason why not.

         19                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes, I do not think we

         20  have a position on that.  We cannot see why one

         21  place is better than another.  I think you all might

         22  know that better than we would.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then it is not

         24  that you particularly prefer that this be under the

         25  Code Enforcement Regulations of the Buildings

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Department?

          3                 MR. FISHMAN:  No, we have no position

          4  on that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And you have

          6  no position about this should be enforced by the

          7  Building Department, itself?

          8                 MR. FISHMAN:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then you do

         10  not have a dispute with the Mayor on that?

         11                 MR. FISHMAN:  Not on that issue.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I appreciate

         16  it.

         17                 MR. FISHMAN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         19  Council Member David Yassky.

         20                 You had indicated in your testimony,

         21  I believe, that even if an employer, you said that

         22  there was no cost factor involved overall, because

         23  if an employer takes over, if the employer should

         24  happen to reduce, let's say the wages by fifty cents

         25  an hour, the workers would receive whatever the

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  wages, the employer puts forward.  Is that correct?

          3                 MR. FISHMAN:  That is correct.

          4  Nothing in the law deals with the wage rates of the

          5  individuals.  The law only deals with the issue of

          6  whether they continue employment.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I see, only

          8  employment.

          9                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Now I

         11  understand that the City's Administration Legal Team

         12  and the Council's Legal Team are discussing the

         13  concerns that are being addressed, you are aware of

         14  that also.  Is that correct?

         15                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes, we are aware of

         16  that.  And we are happy to participate in any way

         17  that is helpful to the Committee or to the Counsel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good, okay.  I

         19  wanted to wait for Council Member Yassky, he did

         20  have a question, and he is here now.  So, Council

         21  Member Yassky, you have the floor.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Mr. Chairman,

         23  thank you very much.  Our colleague and I were

         24  discussing a Brooklyn matter, so it must be done in

         25  a private room, but thank you.
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          2                 I just wanted to state my very strong

          3  support for this bill and to congratulate you,

          4  President Fishman and your extraordinary team.  This

          5  is what government ought to be doing, we need to

          6  make sure that people know that if you work hard and

          7  play by the rules, that you will be treated with

          8  respect, and you will not just be discarded and

          9  thrown aside.  And that is the obligations that the

         10  government owes to the people.  And I just wanted to

         11  thank you very much for your tremendous work on

         12  this.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you

         14  for your testimony and we appreciate it.  I assume

         15  that all of these individuals in the purple and

         16  orange shirts that say 32BJ, are these workers of

         17  32BJ?

         18                 MR. FISHMAN:  Yes, they are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And they are

         20  workers that will be impacted by this legislation?

         21                 MR. FISHMAN:  No, we have two members

         22  here who have, with us today are two members who

         23  worked at 115 East 57th Street. On January 25th a

         24  new owner bought that building.  All the workers in

         25  that building were thrown out of their jobs that day
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          2  when they bought that building.  Two of our members

          3  are here today, Fadila Mrkulic and Jose Rodriguez,

          4  and I would like to ask them to come up and say a

          5  few words, with your permission?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure.

          7                 MS. MRKULIC:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  President.

          9                 MR. NEWMAN:  One second, please.

         10  Could you raise your right hand?  Do you solemnly

         11  swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to

         12  give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         13  the truth?

         14                 MS. MRKULIC:  I do.

         15                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I do.

         16                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your name?

         17                 MS. MRKULIC:  My name is Fadila

         18  Mrkulic.

         19                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  My name is Jose

         20  Rodriguez.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Ms. Mrkulic,

         22  please, Fadila, would you please go forward.

         23                 MS. MRKULIC:  Good morning ladies and

         24  gentlemen of the City Council.  My name is Fadila

         25  Mrkulic.
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          2                 I was born in Bosnia, which I left 30

          3  years ago in search of a better life in the United

          4  States.  I found that better life, my piece of the

          5  American Dream, right here in New York City. For 28

          6  years I was a night cleaner at 115 E. 57th Street.

          7                 Those were mostly good years, where

          8  in addition to having steady and honorable work, I

          9  began raising a family.  My two daughters are

         10  Americans, who were born believing in the

         11  opportunities here.  One daughter is a 22- year-

         12  old, NYU college student who is studying psychology.

         13                 My other daughter is a typical 16-

         14  year- old New York teenager.

         15                 However, for the three of us, the

         16  American Dream turned into a nightmares on January

         17  25th of this year.  That was the date when the

         18  cleaning contractor at 115 E. 57th Street was

         19  changed.  Even before I got to work that day, we

         20  heard a rumor that the day workers had lost their

         21  jobs.  Just like that, no job, no explanation, just

         22  gone.

         23                 Unfortunately, when I got to work, I

         24  found out it was no rumor.  Just like that, after 28

         25  years of hard work, I was unemployed.  It has been
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          2  almost nine months since that day, and I continue to

          3  struggle to support my daughters and myself.

          4                 What is the hardest to understand

          5  about having my job taken away is that it had

          6  nothing to do with how well or how hard I worked.

          7  That is why I want to urge that the City Council

          8  pass the Displaced Worker Bill.  At least, this way

          9  a worker would have a chance to show new boss how

         10  they work.  This is not asking for much, but it is

         11  asking for something very important, a chance to

         12  prove yourself.

         13                 We all have families.  This law would

         14  just help protect those working families.  I urge

         15  you to think of those families and to pass the law.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you for

         18  coming in and giving testimony concerning your

         19  termination or your being released from employment.

         20                 MS. MRKULIC:  You are welcome.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Rodriguez.

         22                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes, Sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Before you

         24  begin, Mr. Rodriguez, I would like to also introduce

         25  my colleague from the great Borough of Manhattan,
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          2  the County of New York, Gale Brewer, sitting in

          3  front.

          4                 Please proceed, Mr. Rodriguez.

          5                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

          6                 MR. FISHMAN:  Good morning, members

          7  of the New York City Council.

          8                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

          9                 MR. FISHMAN:  My name is Jose R.

         10  Rodriguez, I come from the Dominican Republic, and I

         11  have been a member of Local 32BJ for three years.

         12                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         13                 MR. FISHMAN:  I first worked at Tower

         14  Two of the World Trade Center, before I was

         15  transferred to 85 Broad Street.

         16                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         17                 MR. FISHMAN:  A few months later, I

         18  started to work at 115 E. 57th Street.

         19                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         20                 MR. FISHMAN:  That building was a

         21  grater place for me to work, because it is both a

         22  commercial and residential building.

         23                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         24                 MR. FISHMAN:  That allowed me to work

         25  for the first time with apartment residents as well
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          2  as merchants and office workers.

          3                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

          4                 MR. FISHMAN:  However, that pleasant

          5  experience was short- lived.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I am sorry,

          7  Jose, can you pull your mic closer, or can you speak

          8  louder, because I do not hear you as loud and I want

          9  the hear you as a primary speaker, if you do not

         10  mind?

         11                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay, thank you.  (In

         12  Spanish).

         13                 MR. FISHMAN:  On Friday, January

         14  25th, I had called sick when my co- worker Fadila

         15  called me on the phone later that day.  Through her

         16  tears, I was able to understand that all the

         17  cleaners at 115 E. 57th Street had been fired.

         18                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         19                 MR. FISHMAN:  I was shocked to get

         20  the news in that way.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         22                 MR. FISHMAN:  Now, almost a year

         23  later, I have yet to receive any formal notification

         24  that I was fired by the new cleaning contractor.

         25                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).
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          2                 MR. FISHMAN:  I think that was both

          3  rude and wrong, are we not all humans, who deserve

          4  at least that much respect from each other?

          5                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

          6                 MR. FISHMAN:  At home, my wife and

          7  four children shared my shock and fear.  There were

          8  more tears in my apartment, and some anger, too.

          9                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         10                 MR. FISHMAN:  When I came to this

         11  country I never expected it to be easy, or to get

         12  anything for nothing.  But the one thing I did

         13  expect was that no matter what, I would receive

         14  fairness in this country.

         15                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         16                 MR. FISHMAN:  The law the members of

         17  this Council have before them would help create just

         18  that, fairness and respect for workers like myself

         19  and Fadila.

         20                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         21                 MR. FISHMAN:  I hope you will

         22  remember that fairness is what this City has always

         23  been about and pass this law.

         24                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         25                 MR. FISHMAN:  I would just like to

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  say that when we lose fear, we become free.  God

          3  bless America.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Rodriguez for your testimony.  Any questions or

          6  comments from members of the Committee?  Margarita

          7  Lopez, Council member from Manhattan, Ms. Lopez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Sir, I just

          9  need to know, --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Rodriguez

         11  and Fadila, would you please come back up and have a

         12  seat, if you do not mind? Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just, I am

         14  going to ask the question, first, in Spanish, for

         15  Mr. Rodriguez to understand me, and then I will

         16  translate.

         17                 (In Spanish).  I just want to know if

         18  during the period of time that you were working in

         19  the place that you work, if you received any

         20  suspension, any dock from your pays, any report

         21  indicating to you that your employment was not

         22  satisfactory, that you did not perform to an

         23  appropriate level of the work that somebody should

         24  do?

         25                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then during

          3  that whole period of time you never.

          4                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Never, never.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  (In Spanish).

          6                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just asked

          8  him the question that I said before, and he

          9  indicated that he worked there for a year and never

         10  during that year did he receive a single

         11  notification that his work was not to the standards

         12  or to the performance that are needed.

         13                 (In Spanish).

         14                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (In Spanish).

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I asked him,

         16  therefore, if the reason was to, no, if the reason

         17  utilized to let them go was not related at all to

         18  anything that had to do with their performance.  He

         19  said, yes, it does not have nothing to do with that

         20  and we were never notified that we were going to be

         21  let go the day that we were.

         22                 (In Spanish).  I am very sorry about

         23  this treatment that you received, particularly, when

         24  in this City we have laws that protect many, many

         25  other workers from the same thing that you have been

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  subject to, and those laws exist for a long time not

          3  to allow people to lay off people in that manner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          5  Sanders.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  I just

          7  wanted to thank you for coming up and putting a,

          8  very courageous on your part, in putting a human

          9  face on a real problem.  Thank you very much.

         10                 MS. MRKULIC:  You are welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Fadila, you

         12  know, you had indicated, how long were you employed

         13  at that building?

         14                 MS. MRKULIC:  Twenty- eight years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Twenty- eight

         16  years.  And Jose indicated that even as of today, he

         17  did not receive any type of a letter or any type of

         18  written correspondence that he was being terminated

         19  from his employment.  Did you receive anything from

         20  the--

         21                 MS. MRKULIC:  No, we did not know

         22  anything about it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And how much

         24  notice before being terminated did you receive?

         25                 MS. MRKULIC:  Five minutes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Five minutes?

          3                 MS. MRKULIC:  Whole company about 30

          4  minutes was out, like we were criminals.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And you said

          6  you was employed at that building for 28 years.

          7  What position were you employed in?

          8                 MS. MRKULIC:  I was cleaning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And did you

         10  ever receive an unsatisfactory rating for your work?

         11                 MS. MRKULIC:  No, I always received

         12  compliments and cards thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, well,

         14  again, like Council Member Sanders, it is always

         15  important that when we consider passing legislation

         16  to hear from workers that were directly impacted.

         17  It is good to hear from your representatives, your

         18  President, but it is always better to hear from

         19  workers themselves.

         20                 MS. MRKULIC:  And we have a great

         21  President.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And I want to

         23  thank you for coming in.  Thank you for your

         24  testimony.  I want to recognize the Council member

         25  from Queens, Melinda Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I want to thank

          3  the Chair for yielding.  I was just talking to the

          4  Chair about the unbelievable lobby effort that this

          5  union had, and I think that all of us recognized

          6  that.  And you really put a lot of attention on a

          7  subject matter that deserved the attention, but a

          8  lot of times, as members of the Council, and this is

          9  not against any lobbyists or attorneys or anything,

         10  we hear from a lot of folks that come here and lobby

         11  us and they do a great job.  But to come out and see

         12  all of you here, and over the last few months, Mr.

         13  President, your government outreach group and Alan

         14  and a whole bunch of the other folks that have

         15  reached out to us, really has been an unbelievable

         16  effort.

         17                 I was talking to some of the other

         18  members here, you know, we all agree it is the right

         19  thing to do, but sometimes, you know, if you do not

         20  put a lot of attention onto it, it might get lost in

         21  the cracks.  So you have really done a great job and

         22  your workers have too.  And what the Chairman said

         23  as far as seeing the actual individuals that are

         24  affected by this, there is no better. And so we are

         25  happy because you make our job easier.  So thank you
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          2  and also thank you to the Chairman Jackson, who

          3  really has a done a great with this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  We

          5  are going to hear testimony that will be read into

          6  the record by the Counsel of this Committee, Robert

          7  Newman.  The testimony will be from CBS Collins

          8  Building Services, Inc., at 1775 Broadway.  And

          9  members you have a copy of that testimony, I

         10  believe, in front of you.  Robert.

         11                 MR. NEWMAN:  This is the testimony of

         12  Joseph Collins, who is the President of Collins

         13  Building Services.

         14                  "My name is Joseph Collins.  I am

         15  President of Collins Building Services, Inc., one of

         16  the leading providers of building and contract

         17  cleaning services in New York City.  We provide

         18  contract cleaning services to commercial office

         19  buildings and other facilities in New York.  Collins

         20  Building Services supports Intro. 239, the New York

         21  City Displaced Building Service Workers Protection

         22  Act.

         23                 It is good for the workforce and the

         24  community without hindering the operations of

         25  responsible employers. Contract cleaning is a highly

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  competitive business.  Labor costs make up most of

          3  the costs of delivering cleaning services. Contracts

          4  for cleaning are generally terminable for 30 days

          5  notice with or without cause.  It is a fact of life

          6  of the industry that contracts for buildings are

          7  always going out to bid.

          8                 The labor force typically consists of

          9  immigrant and minority employees.  High turnovers

         10  are common in the workforce, except where there is a

         11  high level of unionization, which often leads to

         12  higher wages and benefits.

         13                 It is a common practice in the

         14  industry for a new contractor on taking over an

         15  account at a building to offer employment to the

         16  janitors and sometimes their supervisor who had

         17  previously been employed in the building.  There are

         18  several reasons for this practice.  First, the

         19  janitors in the building are usually familiar with

         20  the needs of the building.  Second, the tenants in

         21  the building are often comfortable with the people

         22  who have been cleaning their floors.  In these

         23  security conscious times, tenants prefer to see a

         24  familiar face rather than have to adjust to it to

         25  new people entering their spaces.  Finally, hiring
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          2  the existing workforce tends to reduce the new

          3  employer's training costs.

          4                 The practice of hiring the incumbent

          5  workforce when buildings change contractors has

          6  become so commonplace that it has been incorporated

          7  in the industry- wide collective bargaining

          8  agreements that prevail in many urban markets,  such

          9  as Negative York.  As I said, this practice promotes

         10  a stable workforce, minimizes unemployment claims,

         11  while still allowing contractors to compete based on

         12  their ability to offer a superior product.

         13                 In conclusion, Collins Building

         14  Services, Inc., believes that Intro. 239 is good for

         15  the industry, the employees and the community.

         16  Thank you."

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next we will

         18  hear from James Parrott, a representative from the

         19  Fiscal Policy Institute at 275 7th Avenue.  Mr.

         20  Parrott, good morning.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please raise your right

         22  hand?  Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the

         23  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

         24  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. PARROTT:  I do.
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          2                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your name

          3  and affiliation for the record?

          4                 MR. PARROTT:  James Parrott, Deputy

          5  Director and Chief Economist for the Fiscal Policy

          6  Institute.

          7                 Good morning.  The FPI, the Fiscal

          8  Policy Institute is a nonpartisan research and

          9  education organization that focuses on the broad

         10  range of tax budget, economic and related public

         11  policy issues that affect the quality of life and

         12  the economic well- being of New York City and State

         13  residents.

         14                 Thank you, Chairman Jackson, for the

         15  opportunity to testify today on legislation

         16  pertaining to displaced building service workers.

         17  What happens to building service workers when the

         18  ownership of a building changes hands or there is

         19  turnover in the cleaning contractor is important not

         20  only to the workers immediately affected, and to

         21  City taxpayers in general, but in the larger sense,

         22  this issue affects the well being of all low

         23  cholesterol diet and moderate- income workers in the

         24  New York City economy.  In several reports that my

         25  organization has done, most recently in Learning
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          2  from the Nineties, how poor public choices

          3  contribute to income erosion in New York City, the

          4  Fiscal Policy Institute has documented how low- and

          5  moderate- income workers and their families in New

          6  York City generally failed to share meaningfully in

          7  the economic growth of the 1990s.  Our report

          8  concluded that the City and the State of New York

          9  need to do more to establish an effective floor

         10  under the labor market.  This displaced worker

         11  legislation is a purposeful step in that direction.

         12                 The building service industry is a

         13  sizable industry in New York City, employing 88,000

         14  janitors and building service workers.  High quality

         15  building services are critical in an economy

         16  dominated by high profile, high value added

         17  industries such as corporate headquarters, media,

         18  finance and legal services.

         19                 Most building service workers receive

         20  good wages, $16.50 to $17.50 per hour, and family

         21  benefits, including health insurance and pension.

         22  These benefits are critical, especially in view of

         23  the increasing tendency on the part of private

         24  sector employers to not provide these essential

         25  benefits.  In the late 1980s, private employers in
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          2  New York still led the nation in providing health

          3  insurance and pension coverage to their workers. By

          4  the end of the 1990s however, New York's employers

          5  lagged the nation overall.

          6                 Good wages and benefits have clear

          7  economic benefits for the entire city.  The total

          8  wages and benefits paid to the estimated 88,000

          9  building service workers in New York City are

         10  approximately $3 billion a year.  This represents an

         11  enormous infusion into the city economy, and

         12  generates another 33,700 jobs and $1.5 billion in

         13  economic output as wages are spent on New York City

         14  goods and services and as health benefits are

         15  consumed.

         16                 In a real estate market as vast as

         17  New York's ownership turnover annually is measured

         18  in the hundreds.  Industry sources estimate that 100

         19  to 200 office buildings were sold in each of the

         20  last two years, and that about 300 residential

         21  buildings were sold in each of those years.  In most

         22  cases when a building's ownership changes hands, the

         23  building service workers are retained on the job.

         24  Sometimes, however, building service workers are

         25  dismissed.  This can happen whether the workers were
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          2  direct employees of the previous building owner or

          3  employees of a cleaning or building service

          4  contractor.  In addition to cases where the

          5  ownership of the building changes, building service

          6  workers are sometimes dismissed as part of a change

          7  in cleaning contractors without a change in

          8  ownership.  SEIU 32BJ estimates that altogether over

          9  the last two years there has been an average of 300

         10  instances of changes in building service employers,

         11  cleaning or security contractors, property managers

         12  or owners in New York City buildings.

         13                 Using this information and industry

         14  benchmarks, we estimate that about 200 building

         15  service workers could be dismissed in any year

         16  simply because the ownership of the building changes

         17  hands or there is a change in the building service

         18  contractor.  Now this 200 number is not the total

         19  number of workers who work in buildings that change

         20  hands, but our estimate based on recent, on the

         21  experience of the past couple of years of how many,

         22  given that volume of turnover are likely to be

         23  dismissed.  This worker displacement could entail

         24  significant costs for both businesses and taxpayers.

         25    These displaced workers might remain unemployed
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          2  for some period of time, especially in the current,

          3  especially if the current economic slump continues.

          4  They may also be forced to rely on public

          5  assistance, benefits such as food stamps and/or

          6  Medicaid. In the event that they are not eligible to

          7  receive unemployment insurance, or as is the case

          8  for more and more workers, they exhausted their

          9  unemployment benefits, they may receive temporary

         10  assistance to needy families.

         11                 Using standard assumptions about

         12  public assistance eligibility for a four- person

         13  family, we estimate that the displacement of 200

         14  building service workers for an average of six

         15  months could be costing taxpayers and employers who

         16  pay unemployment insurance premiums roughly $3.2

         17  million.  Now, unlike some estimates you have heard

         18  about the cost of this bill this morning, we would

         19  be happy to provide the backup on how we arrived on

         20  these estimates, as we always are in estimates that

         21  we provide to the Council.  This $3.2 million

         22  estimate is the cost of not passing this bill.

         23  Given the fact that the City's unemployment rate is

         24  7.9 percent and likely to continue rising in the

         25  months ahead, a six- month spell of unemployment
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          2  following displacement is not out of the question.

          3  And if the displaced workers are replaced with

          4  workers earning less in wages and benefits, then

          5  there would be an additional loss in spending power

          6  in the local economy and a corresponding negative

          7  ripple effect in lost jobs and economic activity.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  present our testimony.  I would be happy to answer

         10  any questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Parrott. Council Member Lopez from Manhattan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  The estimate

         14  that you projected here of $3.2 million, when you

         15  mentioned that number, that is an estimate that you

         16  made based only on 200 buildings.

         17                 MR. PARROTT:  Only on an estimate of

         18  200 workers who would be displaced.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Only 200

         20  workers?

         21                 MR. PARROTT:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  A year?

         23                 MR. PARROTT:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And a year, it

         25  would be $3.2 million.  If that number would
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          2  increase from 200 to 400 workers, it will duplicate,

          3  correct?

          4                 MR. PARROTT:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Or it would

          6  increase more than that?

          7                 MR. PARROTT:  It would increase by

          8  twofold, that is right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  By twofold,

         10  then it would be 6.4 million?

         11                 MR. PARROTT:  Right, and again, the

         12  estimate of 200 workers who might be displaced, that

         13  is not to be construed as the total number of

         14  workers who work in buildings that change hands, but

         15  only an estimate based on recent experience of how

         16  many workers are likely to be dismissed.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And there is

         18  an area that you referred to before of 300

         19  residential buildings were sold.

         20                 MR. PARROTT:  Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And 100 to 200

         22  office - -

         23                 MR. PARROTT:  Office buildings,

         24  right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Do you have a
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          2  rough idea how many workers were displaced under

          3  that circumstances, under those cases that you

          4  referred to before?

          5                 MR. PARROTT:  In discussions with the

          6  union, 32BJ, on this, in terms of what their

          7  experience is with regard to their members, we

          8  developed some benchmarks for how many workers are

          9  likely to be displaced, and the 200 estimate is

         10  based upon recent experience.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.  And my

         12  last question, I am very curious to know if 32BJ has

         13  information regarding to, if the employees that are

         14  members of the union, are obligated to give a notice

         15  to the employer before they decide to change jobs

         16  and how long that notice had to be, one week, two

         17  weeks, three weeks?  That the employees have to give

         18  notice of leaving the job in advance to the owners,

         19  do you know?

         20                 MR. PARROTT:  I do not know that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You do not

         22  know that.

         23                 MR. PARROTT:  You would have to

         24  direct that to the union.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You have to
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          2  give two weeks. Well it is fascinating how it is

          3  demand from the workers to give notice in case they

          4  are going to leave, but in case that they get fired,

          5  they do not have to get notice.  And it does not

          6  exist no jurisdiction, no law that prevents that,

          7  and the relationship is clearly not fair.

          8                 MR. PARROTT:  There is a law at the

          9  national level that requires advance notification in

         10  the case of plant closings or large layoffs.  But

         11  under that federal law employers with fewer than 50

         12  employees are exempt from that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Are exempt.

         14                 MR. PARROTT:  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then, well,

         16  you know, the only thing that I had to say about

         17  this is it would be very hypocritical for anyone who

         18  opposed this bill, if they see clearly that the

         19  workers are required to give a two week's notice as

         20  minimum, but employers do not have to give no notice

         21  whatsoever to prepare those workers for what is

         22  coming, which is disaster for them.  For the owner

         23  of the place, it is not necessarily the economic

         24  disaster in any way.  It only means that they have

         25  to replace that worker, but for the worker it means
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          2  that they even may lose their home due to not having

          3  income to pay rent.

          4                 MR. PARROTT:  Again, as I understand

          5  the bill, and as Mike Fishman stated earlier, this

          6  bill does not impose any costs on employers.  It

          7  only prevents from trying to cheapen the wages and

          8  lessen the benefits that are provided to workers for

          9  a three month period of time.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is what

         11  is sad about the opposition.

         12                 MR. PARROTT:  It does not impose any

         13  cost on them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And you are

         15  right.  By the way, just one more thing on this,

         16  quickly.  In the testimony of the Mayor they

         17  mentioned the Housing Authority as an agency that

         18  will be affected by this bill, and that will affect

         19  employment in the Housing Authority, in the way that

         20  the Housing Authority hired, put forward the

         21  employees of that Department.

         22                 My understanding is that this bill

         23  does not impact in any way the Housing Authority;

         24  that is correct, the New York City Housing

         25  Authority?
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          2                 MR. PARROTT:  I am not sure, I am not

          3  an attorney, so I cannot answer that question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can the

          5  Counsel clarify that for me?

          6                 MR. PARROTT:  You understand though

          7  that since the Housing Authority's maintenance

          8  employees are unionized, -  -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes, that is

         10  the reason I am saying that.

         11                 MR. PARROTT: - -  the Housing

         12  Authority would be obligated to honor the union

         13  contract, and there are undoubtedly provisions

         14  pertaining to dismissal - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Exactly, that

         16  is the reason why I want to understand why the

         17  Mayor's Office, referring the testimony to the

         18  Housing Authority as a reason not to support this

         19  bill.  Do we know if this bill affects them or not?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That is why,

         21  you know, our Counsel staff had discussions with

         22  them as of yesterday, the Mayor's Office and his

         23  staff, and will continue to discussing to clarify

         24  the issue.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, I am
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          2  curious to know this, I would really like to know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You will know

          4  before the next hearing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And also you

          7  had made a reference to $3.2 million for 200 workers

          8  per year, now, that was the average for six months.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Oh, then that

         10  is not the amount, we are talking 6 million.

         11                 MR. PARROTT:  Well the assumption is

         12  based on a six month spell of unemployment.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Ah, but you

         14  are talking about with healthy economy.  And go and

         15  ask the Republican Party in Washington, what they

         16  are doing to fix this economy right now?

         17                 MR. PARROTT:  You are absolutely

         18  right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         20  Council Member Addabbo from the great Borough of

         21  Queens.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.  Just to bring out something Mr. Parrott

         24  mentioned, the economic benefit to the City,

         25  although there is, I believe, an economic benefit to
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          2  the City with this Intro., the fact is the economic

          3  benefit is there, but the benefits to the thousands

          4  of families and the jobs affected far outweigh that

          5  economic benefit to the City.  And I think this is

          6  an example, the credible work that this Council body

          7  can do, when we work together with the residents and

          8  the workers who are the backbone of this workforce

          9  of this great city.

         10                 So I think this is a testimony to the

         11  Committee and to the Chair and to what we are trying

         12  to accomplish working together, and I think there is

         13  strength in numbers.  So, I appreciate, as a prime

         14  sponsor of Intro. 239, to work with everybody.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  And

         17  thank you, Mr. Parrott for your testimony.  Anyone

         18  else?  Yvette Clarke from the great Borough of

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair.  This hearing is really historic in terms

         22  of what we are talking about here when I listen tot

         23  he testimony that has been given, when I look into

         24  the faces of the members of 32BJ, I am reminded how

         25  this country is actually built.  I am reminded of
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          2  the people who come from many different countries to

          3  give of themselves, to establish themselves, to

          4  become Americans, to raise their families in dignity

          5  and in freedom.  And I think about historically what

          6  has happened to people who come to this country to

          7  make a better life, how they take, oftentimes, the

          8  employment that is the most challenging, least

          9  rewarding financially, but somehow make it, put

         10  their children through school, save and buy homes,

         11  and really become the underpinning and

         12  infrastructure for the growth and development of our

         13  city and our nation.

         14                 And I also think about historically

         15  how these people have been treated.  How our people

         16  have been treated.  I think about the fact that the

         17  laws have been changed over time to address some of

         18  the inhumanities that have existed, that have put

         19  people's lives in danger, they have brought certain

         20  safety measures into place.  And now I look at where

         21  we are today, the 21st Century, and this country

         22  having gone through evolution and change to address

         23  inhumanity.  And I look at where we sit today, and

         24  the decision, I believe, that we are compelled to

         25  make in supporting this legislation, that now puts
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          2  us at a level in this city where we take humanity to

          3  the next level.

          4                 Our city will survive this

          5  legislation, it will be all the better for this

          6  legislation, because the next wave of workers in

          7  32BJ, the next generation of workers of 32BJ will

          8  not experience what many of the members that

          9  preceded them have experienced in terms of

         10  displacement, destabilization, and ultimately, a

         11  setback for our city when we displace workers in

         12  that way.

         13                 I am very proud of the work that 32BJ

         14  has done, because, in fact, what they have done is

         15  they have stood up, they said, for our sake and the

         16  sake of future workers in this industry, this is

         17  where the buck stops.  And we have said also,

         18  sitting here today, you know, we agree, we see, we

         19  know what is right, and doing what is right and what

         20  is principle comes above and beyond what people want

         21  to misconstrue as financial instability.  We know

         22  that when we set the standard, when we set the floor

         23  for what must be a practice in this city that the

         24  finances will adjust as well.  And so I am very

         25  proud to be here today, at this historic moment, to
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          2  say that we are putting legislation in place to

          3  address what has been a real injustice to the people

          4  of the City of New York.  The faces that we see here

          5  today that are my neighbors, that are your

          6  neighbors, that are the families that represent New

          7  York City at its best.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

         10  Council Member Clarke.  Thank you, Mr. Parrott.

         11                 Let me explain the process from here

         12  concerning this proposed legislation.  The Council

         13  staff and the Mayor's staff will be discussing the

         14  issues and concerns raised by the Mayor to see if we

         15  can reach agreement.  There will be a second hearing

         16  in the future some time, hopefully, in October,

         17  where the bill will be voted out of this Committee.

         18                 When the bill is voted out of this

         19  Committee by, at least, a majority of the Committee,

         20  then it will go to the full City Council, at

         21  hopefully the following Stated meeting.  At that

         22  point, the City Council will vote on the proposed

         23  law, and then, if that happens positively by the

         24  full Council, then the Speaker will send the bill to

         25  the Mayor for signature.  It will be up to the Mayor
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          2  as to whether or not he will sign into law.  If he

          3  signs it into law, then the law, my understanding,

          4  Robert, would take effect immediately.  If he does

          5  not sign into law, and the Mayor has an option to

          6  veto the bill, then it will be sent back to the

          7  Council for reconsideration that the Mayor vetoed

          8  the bill.

          9                 I believe, at that point in time, it

         10  may have to come back to this Committee to be

         11  discussed again, meaning that he vetoed it, it will

         12  come back and we will vote to either override the

         13  veto and then send it to the full Council again.

         14  And if the full Council feels that it should go

         15  forward, then we must override the veto with at

         16  least, what 35?

         17                 MR. NEWMAN:  Three- quarters.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Three quarters

         19  of the Council. And only at that point in time it

         20  will become law.  So it will either become law by

         21  the Mayor signing it into law, or the City Council

         22  overriding the Mayor's veto.

         23                 And so, I will be involved, along

         24  with many of you, over the course of the next two

         25  months concerning this proposed legislation.
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          2                 At this point in time, at 11:35, I

          3  would like to call this hearing over.  Thank you.

          4                 (Hearing was adjourned at 11:35 a.m.)

          5                 (The following testimony was read

          6  into the record.)

          7

          8  Testimony of:

          9  Cynthia Estlund

         10  Professor of Law

         11  Columbia University Law School

         12

         13                 Good morning, I am Cynthia Estlund.

         14  I am a Professor of Law at Columbia University Law

         15  School.  My area of expertise is Labor and

         16  Employment Law.  My testimony today relates to the

         17  Building Service Displaced Worker Protection

         18  legislation that is currently under consideration.

         19                 It is my understanding that others

         20  will address the social policy rationale for the

         21  proposed ordinance and the details of its mode of

         22  operation.

         23                 In that regard, I would only note

         24  that similar protective legislation for employees is

         25  the building service industry, among others, has
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          2  been enacted within the last decade in a number of

          3  other jurisdictions, including California, the

          4  District of Columbia, and Philadelphia, and formed a

          5  part of federal procurement policy prior to the

          6  current administration.

          7                 The proposed legislation, then,

          8  appears to be part of an emerging trend

          9  establishing,  on the state or local government

         10  level, new minimum labor standards designed to

         11  respond to challenges presented by the so- called

         12  contingent labor market, a topical of much recent

         13  public and academic commentary.

         14                 The focus of my remarks will be on

         15  the question of whether the proposed legislation is

         16  preempted by federal labor law or is within the

         17  authority of local government to regulate. Federal

         18  preemption of local employment and labor laws is a

         19  complex and evolving area of the law encompassing

         20  several distinct doctrines.

         21                 That being said, as I will explain in

         22  summary form below, the proposed legislation under

         23  consideration here is not preempted.  It simply

         24  establishes a minimum employment standard with

         25  regard to job security.  It does not intrude on the
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          2  bargaining process itself, nor on the methods of

          3  which employers or unions are permitted by federal

          4  labor law to put pressure on each other during that

          5  process.

          6                 For that reason, the United States

          7  Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia upheld

          8  a similar statute against a claim that it was

          9  preempted by federal labor law.  See Washington

         10  Service Contractors Coalition v. District of

         11  Columbia, 54 F.3d 811 (D.C. Cir. 1995).

         12                 In order to understand why local

         13  displaced worker laws are not preempted by federal

         14  labor law, a brief review of the National Labor

         15  Relations Act and the rights and obligations it

         16  creates is in order.

         17                 The NLRA establishes the system of

         18  collective bargaining for private sector employees,

         19  including the building service employees covered by

         20  the proposed legislation.

         21                 Under the NLRA, as it has been

         22  amended over the years, Congress provided procedures

         23  for employees to select a union to represent them

         24  for purposes of collective bargaining, either

         25  through an election conducted by the National Labor
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          2  Relations Board (NLRB) or through voluntary

          3  recognition by an employer.

          4                 The law, as interpreted by the courts

          5  and the NLRB, defines the rules that government

          6  bargaining between a union and an employer, what

          7  subjects must be negotiated, how the parties must

          8  behaved toward each other during bargaining, and a

          9  myriad of other issues.

         10                 The federal scheme does not mandate

         11  that the parties reach agreement; it simply requires

         12  them to bargaining in good faith with an open mind

         13  toward reaching an agreement.  If the bargaining

         14  process fails to produce an agreement, no federal

         15  agency, arbitrator, or mediator is authorized to

         16  impose one on the parties.

         17                 Instead, the NLRA contemplates that

         18  the parties are free to use certain tactics to put

         19  pressure on the other side to reach an agreement.

         20  These economic weapons, as they are called, consist

         21  most notable of the employees right to strike and

         22  the employer's right to lock out the employees, or

         23  to impose unilaterally its own terms and conditions

         24  of employment if bargaining reaches an impasse.

         25                 The federal scheme does not seek to
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          2  balance the economic power of the union or employer

          3  or to correct any imbalance that may exist because

          4  of the respective size or resources of the Union or

          5  the employer in any given dispute. If one side is

          6  more powerful, it can and may prevail and achieve

          7  its bargaining goals.

          8                 Over the years, the courts have had

          9  to consider whether certain state and local laws are

         10  preempted by federal labor law because they

         11  interfere with the operation of this federal scheme

         12  or because they regulate in an area that the federal

         13  scheme intended either to be regulated exclusively

         14  by the NLRB or to be unregulated altogether.  The

         15  Displaced Building Service Worker law under

         16  consideration here does not come within any of the

         17  categories of local law that the courts have deemed

         18  preempted.

         19                 First, courts have struck down on

         20  preemption grounds local legislation that purports

         21  to regulate the economic weapons that employers or

         22  unions may utilize during the collective bargaining

         23  process.

         24                 Thus, the courts have struck down

         25  laws limiting the right to strike, which is

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  expressly protected by federal law.  See, e.g.,

          3  Weber v. Anheuser- Busch, Inc., 348 U.S. 480 (1955).

          4                 Unlike those laws, the legislation

          5  proposed here does not implicate any rights

          6  expressly conferred or reasonably derived from the

          7  NLRA, and is not vulnerable to challenge on that

          8  ground.

          9                 Second, the courts have struck down

         10  local laws that regulate conduct, specifically,

         11  means of exerting economic pressure, that is neither

         12  protected nor prohibited by the NLRA, but that

         13  Congress intended to leave wholly unregulated.  "To

         14  sanction state regulation of economic pressure

         15  deemed by the NLRA desirably...left for the free

         16  play of economic forces...is denying one party to an

         17  economic contest a weapon that Congress meant him to

         18  have available."  International Association of

         19  Machinists v. Wisconsin Employment Relations Comm'n,

         20  427 U.S. 132, 150 (1975). That strand of preemption

         21  doctrine has no applications to the local

         22  legislation under consideration here.

         23                 By contrast to the kinds of laws that

         24  have been held preempted, the courts have upheld

         25  state or local minimum employment standard laws that
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          2  apply to employees generally, such as state or local

          3  minimum wage and hours laws.

          4                 Such laws are not preempted by the

          5  NLRA even though they regulate terms of employment

          6  that are otherwise proper subjects for the

          7  collective bargaining process.

          8                 Rather, such minimum standards laws

          9  form the baseline against which the bargaining

         10  process proceeds.  In Metropolitan Life Ins. Co. V.

         11  Massachusetts, 471 U.S. 724 (1985), for example, the

         12  Supreme Court upheld against a preemption challenge

         13  a Massachusetts state law that mandated minimum

         14  health benefits for employees even though health

         15  benefits were a subject for collective bargaining.

         16  As the Court explained, the federal labor law "is

         17  concerned with establishing an equitable process for

         18  determining the terms and conditions of employment,"

         19  and is "entirely unrelated to local or federal

         20  regulation establishing minimum terms of

         21  employment."  See also Fort Halifax Packing Co.,

         22  Inc. V. Coyne, 482 U.S. 1, 23 (1987) ("The

         23  establishment of a minimum labor standard does not

         24  impermissibly intrude upon the collective bargaining

         25  process."); Livadas v. Bradshaw, 512 U.S. 107
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          2  (1994).

          3                 Thus, local law is not preempted

          4  simply because it regulates an aspect of the

          5  employment relationship that is grist for the

          6  collective bargaining process.

          7                 Federal law contemplates that states

          8  and localities will devise new types of workplace

          9  regulations, in effect remodeling the floor over

         10  which the federal collective bargaining scheme

         11  operates.  The D.C. Circuit upheld the District of

         12  Columbia Displaced Worker Protection Act on just

         13  such an analysis.

         14                 The court correctly characterized the

         15  law as establishing a minimum labor standard, one

         16  that extends a measure of job security to workers

         17  during a transfer of ownership.  Washington Service

         18  Contractors Ass'n, 54 F.3d at 818 ("the District has

         19  enacted substantive employee protective legislation

         20  having nothing to do with rights to organize or

         21  bargaining collectively.  The NLRA does not

         22  preempted such legislation.")

         23                 [The only way to find this law

         24  preempted would be to positive that new employers

         25  may choose not to hire their predecessors'
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          2  employees, and that such non- hiring decisions are

          3  legitimate "economic weapons" in a "labor dispute"

          4  that Congress intended to leave unregulated or to

          5  protect.

          6                 But the only possible "labor dispute"

          7  on the scene is over whether the workforce will

          8  become represented by a union; the only hiring

          9  decisions that could help the employer avoid this

         10  result are refusals to hired employees from the

         11  unionized workforce of the predecessor.

         12                 So the unstated but absurd premise of

         13  the preemption argument is that employers have a

         14  federal right to refuse to hire employees who are

         15  likely to be union sympathizers in order to avoid

         16  becoming a unionized workplace.

         17                 Needless to say, nothing in federal

         18  labor law either implicitly or explicitly gives

         19  employers a right to use hiring decisions as a

         20  weapon in the bargaining process or in response to

         21  employees' organizing activities.  As the D.C.

         22  Circuit acutely observed, "the NLRA contains no

         23  implicit right of an employer to refuse to hired

         24  employees on the basis of union membership."

         25  Washington Service Contractors Ass'n, 54 F.3d at
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          2  817.

          3                 Indeed, the NLRA expressly forecloses

          4  employers from doing just that.  See, Sections

          5  8(a)(1) and (3), 29 U.S.C. Section 158 (a) (1) and

          6  (3).]

          7                 Two final elements of the proposed

          8  legislation bear further comment.  First, the

          9  proposed ordinance provides that employers who are

         10  party to certain collective bargaining agreements

         11  will not be subject to the operation of the

         12  legislation.

         13                 Such collective bargaining opt- out

         14  provisions are common features of state minimum

         15  labor standards legislation, and as such, the courts

         16  have not found such features incompatible with

         17  federal labor law or invalidated local legislation

         18  because of them.

         19                 The Supreme Court has expressly

         20  upheld opt- out provisions such as the one proposed

         21  here, which permit employees, through the collective

         22  bargaining process, to "devise their own

         23  arrangements" as to the subject matter of the local

         24  law at issue in lieu of the particular standard

         25  imposed by the local law.  Fort Halifax Packing Co.
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          2  Inc., 482 U.S. At 22.  This holding was reaffirmed

          3  by the lower federal courts in upholding various

          4  opt- out provisions of local laws.  See, Viceroy

          5  Gold Corporation v. Aubrey, 75 F.3d 482 (9th Cir.

          6  1996); National Broadcasting Co. V. Bradshaw, 70

          7  F.3d 69 (9th Cir. 1995).

          8                 Second, the proposed legislation may

          9  include within its scope some employees who are

         10   "supervisors" as that term is defined under the

         11  NLRA.  Nothing in the NLRA prohibits state or local

         12  legislation from providing the type of minimum

         13  employment benefits at issue here, the right to be

         14  hired in the circumstances covered by the

         15  legislation, even if the legislation's beneficiaries

         16  are supervisors under the NLRA.  Section 14(a) of

         17  the NLRA provides in pertinent part that "no

         18  employer subject to this Act shall be compelled to

         19  deem individuals defined herein as supervisors as

         20  employees for the purpose of any law, either

         21  national or local, relating to collective

         22  bargaining." (emphasis supplied).

         23                 Since the proposed local legislation

         24  is not a law relating to collective bargaining and

         25  it does not imposed any bargaining obligations, or
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          2  require employers to include supervisory employees

          3  within any collective bargaining relationship, it

          4  does not run a foul of Section 14(a).

          5                 A state law mandating certain minimum

          6  employment benefits may extend those benefits to

          7  supervisors without being preempted by the NLRA; so,

          8  too, this state law mandating a measure of job

          9  security to employees may extend to supervisors

         10  without being preempted.

         11                 In conclusion, the proposed local

         12  legislation does not conflict with federal labor law

         13  and is entitled to be considered on its own merits.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:35 a.m.)
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